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Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Directors’ Report

The Directors present therr report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2011

Corporate Structure

Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited (“the Company”™) 1s a private imited company incorporated,
domiciled and registered in England and Wates under the number 6143511  The registered address 1s Charter
Court, 50 Windsor Road, Slough, Berkshire SL1 2EJ The Company was incorporated on 7 March 2007

The Company acquired 100% of the share capital of Guardian Digital Communications Limited (*GDCL") on 20
April 2007, which on the same day acquired 100% of the share capital of Arwave Solutions Limited (or
“Alrwave”)

Guardian Digital Commumnications Limited and its subsidiary undertakings, associates and joint ventures are
incorporated within the consolidated financial statements contained in this report, and together with the Company
are referred to as the Group

The parent of the Company 1s Guardian Digital Communications Luxembourg Sa rl ({GDCLux") GDCLux 1s
owned 50 001% by the Macquane European Infrastructure Fund Il *"MEIFII") and 49 989% by the Canadian
Pension Plan Investment Board {("CPPIB") During the year, MEIFIl agreed to acquire CPPIB's holding in
GDCLux The transaction 1s dependent upon UK Government approval and 1s yet to be completed Upon
completion, MEIFI] will hold 100% of GDCLux reaffirming Macquarne's long-term commitment to the Airwave
business

Principal Activities and Results

The principal actvities of the Group during the year were the development and provision of Mobile Information
and Communication Technology (“ICT') to Public Safety and Public Sector Organisations in the UK These
services are based around the established and open technology standard of Temestrial Trunked Radio
(“TETRA"), with network access provided through a ground-based network with approximately 3,850 base sites

The secure digital radio network 1s designed to carry voice and data communications and the service offers
enhanced levels of coverage across the whole of England, Wales and Scotland

The Airwave service has been developed to withstand disaster situations when standard networks have been
known to fail This 1s constantly being further developed so that all voice and data communication 1s secure from
infiltration  The Arwave network uses encryption protocols to achieve this level of secunty To enable the level of
service demanded by emergency and public safety users, the Airwave service 1s specifically bullt to deliver the
five operational imperatives of Coverage, Responsiveness, Resilience, Secunty and Interoperability

The Group also provided consulting services both in the UK and internationally with regard to designing, building,
operating and maintaining public safety networks

The consolidated results for the year are set out below and in more detall in the attached financial statements

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

£1000 £000

Total Revenue 390,299 413,227
Earnings before depreciation interest tax and amortisation (“EBITDA")’ 207,063 192,759
Loss after tax excluding fair value movements of interest rate swaps (43,602) (74.397)
Comprehensive Loss after tax atinbutable to owners of the parent (35,346) (142 324)

' A reconciliation of operating profit to EBITDA 1s shown in note 3 to the financial statements

The loss after tax of £35 milion (2010 £142 million) 1s after non-cash items of depreciation of £108 million (2010
£104 millton), amortisation of £44 milkon (2010 £43 million) and unrealised profit on interest rate swaps of £11
milhon (2010 £94 milon loss) as detaled in note 3 to the financial statements
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Review of the Business
Operating review

The Group continued to deliver its core network senvices under existing contracts in excess of contractual service
levels Durnng the year the Group achieved final milestone acceptance under the Fire programme The Airwave
service 1S now fully hve for all three blue hght customers, Police, Ambulance and Fire, including the addittonal
resilence (CHS and GBNR) and coverage (London Underground) programmes completed tn recent years

The Group 1s delivering two major programmes associated with the London Olympics, through its contracts with
the Olympic Secunty Dwectorate {(OSD) and the London Organising Committee for the Olympic Games
(LOCOG) The OSD contract involves prowvision of enhanced network capabilities to the emergency services
duning the games, whilst the LOCOG contract involves the build of a network for use of the organising committee
around the games During the year several key network bulld milestones were completed and services have
commenced dunng Olympic test events The Group i1s looking forward to playing its role in London hasting a
successful Olympics

In the lead up to the games, the Group continues to develop its track record for providing an outstanding service
dunng major events Dunng Aprl’s Royal Wedding, the Airwave service was In use by approximately 6000 users,
across multiple organisations including Police, Ambulance and Transport for Lendon

Revenue for the core contracts were in line with expectations As the core contracts are now in-life and major
programmes are being delwvered, year-on-year service revenues have grown and one-off mplementation
revenues have reduced

Whilst the current economic chimate and government budgetary pressures are contnbuting towards slower than
anticipated new business sales and revenues including Mobile Data, the Group 1s confident that its products and
solutions deliver efficiencies and cost savings to our customers and I1s positive about the opportunities expected
to anse

The acquisitign of Kelvin Connect, a leading mobile data solutions prowider, took place in February Kelvin
Connect Limited 1s now a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group This acquisihon marks the Group's ongoing
commitment and confidence iIn our mobile data strategy Kelvin Connect Limited's products aim to create
administrative efficiencies allowing greater utilisatton of Police resource

After announcing a restructuring programme in the previous financial year, the programme has since been
completed including the redundancies of approximately 15% of roles within the Group, all on a voluntary basis

Despite the challenges ansing from the current economic climate for future government spend, the Group I1s
optimistic about its future The Group has realistic growth expectations in the current economic chimate and s
seeking to increase Its presence In the international market

Financial performance for the year

Total revenue for the year was £390 million, representing a 5 5% decrease on the corresponding year, due to the
recognition of one-off Implementation revenues 1n the previous year Service revenues have increased 5 5% as
the network 1s now fully live for ali blue-ight customers Despite the reduction 1n revenue, gross profit has
iIncreased by 10 8% to £127 milllon because margin associated with implementation revenues 1s less than that of
service revenues

Administrative expenses excluding exceptional items were £70 million, representing a 2 6% increase on the
corresponding year, dniven by an increase n amortisation expense on rights associated with the London 2012

EBITDA was £207 milhon, representing a 7 4% increase from the comresponding year, dnven by gross margin
from higher service revenues and operational efficiencies delivered in the current year
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Financial performance for the year (continued)

Net finance costs of £123 milon were significantly less than the comparative year (2010 £229 milhon) This
includes a fair value gain on interest rate swaps of £11 milion in the year {2010 £94 million loss) The swaps
were put In place in Apnl 2007 when the Group acquired Arrwave The acquisiion was funded by both
shareholder funds and external debt of £1,500 milhion The interest rate swaps were put in place as part of the
Group's nsk management policies to hedge the Group's Interest rate exposure on the external debt, effectively
fixing the interest rate at 5 496% (plus margin) until 2019, subject to early termination nghts Under Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards the Group 15 required to reflect the fair value of the swaps on the balance sheet
At 30 June 2011 the Group has recognised total mark-to-market losses of £257 milion (2010 £269 million),
being the theoretical cost to the Group of terminating the swaps This unrealised loss has arisen as a result of the
change In credit markets causing reductions n interest rates The Directors have no current intention of
terminating the swaps and reatise the loss

Interest payable on external borrowings reduced from £108 million to £106 milkon The Group has fixed the
tnterest rate on £1,500 million of external debt (HSBC Facility A), the reduction 1s a result of interest savings
assoclated with the Group’s basis swaps

Financial position as at 30 June 2011

Nat habilities increased from £362 million at 30 June 2010 to £402 million at 30 June 2011 Significant
movements of balance sheet components are discussed below

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment reduced from £776 mullion at 30 June 2010 to £712 mulbion at
30 June 2011 reflecting £43 milicn of new additions off-set by £108 mulllon of depreciation charges Additions
during the year related to both Olympics programmes (OSD and LOCOG) as well as in-Ife expenditure related to
the core contracts

Total current assets increased from £86 milion at 30 June 2010 to £99 million at 30 June 2011 dnven by a £6
milien increase in trade and other recervables, a £9 million increase 1n cash and cash equivalents offset by a £2
million decrease n other financial assets

Total current habilities increased from £247 million at 30 June 2010 to £250 million at 30 June 2011 driven by a
£12 million increass in deferred income, a £1 million increase In trade and other payables and £1 mullion increase
In borrowings offset by a £11 million reduction in provisions

Non-current habilities decreased from £2,722 milion at 30 June 2010 to £2,668 milion at 30 June 2011 reflecting
an decrease of £54 millon The decrease 15 a result of 2 £19 million reduction in deferred iIncome, a decrease n
the non-current portion of interest swap liability of £14 million and a £30 million reduction in deferred income tax
habilities These increases were offset by a reduction in borrowings of £8 million

The Group's ability to generate cash flows continues to strengthen with the cash from operating net of investing
activities of £135 million for the year (2010 £81 milion) The Group's cash generation 1s due to steady revenue
streams ansing from being the secure communications provider for all three emergency services This, combmned
with achieving new business opportunities from a quality portfolio of other public safety customers, should ensure
that the positive cash profile 1s maintained over future years

Going concern

The Directors, having reviewed the Group's liquid resources, access to committed borrowings facilities, and its
future cash flow forecasts, have a reascnable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue as
a going concemn While there are nsks to the monthly profile of cash flows due to timing of working capital
movements and non-contracted new business these nsks are mitigated due to steady contracted cash fiows and
surplus headroom on banking faciities Therefore these financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Strategy / Future developments

Despite the current market climate reducing growth expectations, the focus for the Group s to continue the
growth that has been attained n recent years Following the Group's organisational restructunng, cost controf
and clear identification of feasible and targeted growth opportunities, the Group expects to continue to increase
profitability and operating cash flows

within the UK, the Group 1s focused on providing exceptional service to all customers and expanding its services
to existing and new customers The Group will continue its successfut preparation for the London 2012 Olympic
Games and 1s looking forward to the role that it will play as an official supplier to the Games Internationally, the
Group 15 seeking further opportunities where 1t can leverage the expertise developed within the UK market,
ranging from short term consulting to network buld and operations, being driven in pant, by partnerships and
possible inorganic activity

Employees

The Group 15 committed to employment and recruitment policies which follow best practice, based on equal
opporturities for all employees irrespective of race, nationalty, aae, religion, gender, sexual onentaton, mantal
status or canng responsibilities and offers appropriate training and career development for staff with disabilities If
members of staff become disabled the Group continues employment wherever possible and arranges retraining

The Group is also committed to providing employees with information on matters of concern to them on a regular
basis, so that the views of employees can be taken into account when making decisions that are likely to affect
their interests Communications and involvement with employees was and continues to be undertaken via several
media including n-house magazines and also regular internal emal updates, e-magazines, monthly
teleconferences and annual events

The redundancy programme implemented during the year has been achieved without the need for compulsory
redundancies and no operational impact on our customers

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the Group's business and the execution of its strategy are subject to a number of nsks and
uncertainties The key nisks facing the business are set out below

Operational nsk management, policies and exposure

Network faillure nsk

There 18 a nsk of the Airwave network faikng due to events either inside or outside of the Group's control A
senous falure would have a major impact on customers’ performance and with the nature of the emergency
service customer base, repercussions could be cntical wvaith possible loss of life This would result In severe
damage to the Group, its brand and reputation and has therefore been mitigated by increasing network secunty
and resilience and putting in place robust operational procedures to enable the service to be mantained during
such incidents

Risk of timely network roll-out

The Group is currently completing the rollout of networks for use leading to and durning the Clympic Games
There are nsks that these programmes are delayed, due to internal, supplier or customer problems These delays
can cause lost revenue and make the Group hable to hquidated damages claims These nsks are mitigated
through careful project management and by having contractual recovenes from core suppliers If delays are
caused by them Working closely with the Olympic customers 1s of utmost importance to the Group as delivery
during the Games 1s cnitical

Health nsk

Concerns about the perceived health nsks of TETRA radio technology could have a negative impact on business
and tarmish the Airwave brand However, the balance of evidence i1s that there are no such nsks beyond those
that are well-understood within the established scientific community and for which internaticnal safety guidelines
have been published and implemented across the Airwave network




Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Directors’ Report (continued)

Operational nsk management, policies and exposure (continued)

Health nsk (continued)

Government and industry funded independent research programmes inte potential nsks of mobile
communications technology, including TETRA, have so far reinforced this view Airwave, meanwhile, follows
telecommunications industry guidelines in haising sensitively with local communities where it seeks to extend its
network infrastructure

Price nsk

The Group has exposure to fluctuations in pnces of electricity and other commodities that are consumed In its
operational activites The petenhtal impact of this 15 reduced through the negotiation, where possible, of fixed
price contracts and also offset by clauses 1n key customer contracts that allow for annual infiation adjustments to
service fees There 15 a nsk that government budget cuts lead to pnce pressure on existing contracts and new
business The Group works closely with its custorners 1n order to understand such nsks and reviews its product
offering, cost base and organisational structure in response to these nsks

Financial risk management objectives, policies and exposure

The Group's operations expose it to a vanety of financial nsks that include the effects of changes in credit nsk,
haudity nsk, foreign exchange and cash flow interest rate nsk The Group’s overall nsk management programme
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects as noted below

Credit risk

The Group’s pnncipal credit nsks are attributable to cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables Cash and
cash equivalent credit nsk 1s monitored on an overall basis through the application of counter party credit hmits
which are dependent on the long-term Credit Rating of the counter party The Group has hmited exposure to
trade receivable credit nsk as the majonty of its customers are Natienal Public Safety Organisations

Liquidity risk

The Group has external debt, and 1s overall cash generating External debt costs are financed from net positive
cash-flows generated from operating and investing activites The Group regularly monitors its actual and
projected cash position

For certain contractual arrangements cash 1s received in advance of the services being provided This 15
recognised as deferred income in the balance sheet, and 15 released to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the remaining Iife of the contract The cash received in advance 1s used to fund a
proportion of the Group’s capital expenditure programme

Exchange rate nsk
Management moniter exchange rate nsk but as yet there 1s no current significant foreign currency exchange
exposure This I1s because more than 99% of assets and liabilibies are denominated in Pounds Sterling (GBP)

Interest rate nsk

The Group I1s not relant on inferest income but has significant borrowing costs associated with its long-term
borrowing arrangements These long-term borrowings are ssued at floating interest rates The Group manages
its exposure by entenng into interest rate swaps, whereby the Group settles the difference between the fixed and
fioating rate amounts at specified intervals These swaps result in the group effectively paying a fixed interest rate
on the majority of its external borrowings

Capatal rnisk

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern m order to prowde returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to mamtain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares, sell assets to reduce debt or drawdown additional
debt

The Group’s Capital Management Palicy 1s to ensure the availability of an adequate supply of reasonably pneed
funding {(and other credit ines} to the meet current requirements as well as future growth anticipated under the
Group's budget and strategic plan, within the constramnts of debt capacity (as determined by long-term gearing
targets, operational covenants and financial covenant requirements)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Capital nsk (continued)

The Group 1s funded through a mix of equity and debt, to match the matunty profile of its assets and habilities
The funding profile was determined dunng the shareholder acquisitton process to reflect the dynamics of the
organisation and its future strategy

The treasury function manages all funding actvaty for the Group and determines the optimum source of funding
for each funding requirement, with the appropriate maturity, whilst ensunng maximum flexbility

Key performance indicators

The Group has made significant progress this year on its objectives and key performance indicators The Board
menitors progress on both financial and customer satisfaction measures as set out below

Year ended Year ended
30 Juna 2011 30 June 2010
£000 £'000 Definition, method of calculation 2nd anatysis

Revenue comprises the far value of services and egquipment
provided, excludes VAT and cther sales taxes and 1s after elimination

Total Revenue 390,299 413,227 of sales within the Group Revenue has reduced due to one-off
implementation revenues recogmised in the prior year Service
revenues have increased

EBITDA 15 calulated by adding depreciation and amortisation
charges in the year to operating profit before exceptional items The

EBITDA 207,063 192,759 increase was due to gress margin from higher service revenues and
operational efficiencies delivered in the current year

Operating Cash s calculated by deducting working capital and capital
expenditure movements from EBITDA in the year It excludes

Operating cash 148,158 92,171 exceptional cash payments The increase resulied from the increase
in EBITDA and reduction in Capital Expendifure as the Group has
compleied rollout of the major programmes

The Group measures the level of service credits payable to customers as a result of incidents on the network that
impact the level of service expenenced The level of service credits recogmsed In the year were in ine with
management's expectations following initiatives to address the amount of credits incurred

The Group also undertakes annuat customer satisfactions surveys for roll-out and in-life performance of the
network These were in accordance with management’s expectations

Results and proposed dividend
The consolidated loss after taxation for the year ended 30 June 2011 was £35 mullion (2010 £142 millon)
The Directors declared dividends of £26 61 per share totaling £4 1 milion dunng the year (2010 £241 25 per

share, totalling £36 9 milhen) The Directors recommend the payment of a dividend of £86 22 per share totalling
£13 2 million for the year ended 30 June 2011 (2010 £26 61 per share, totalling £4 1 million)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors

The Directors who held office dunng the year and up to the signing date of the financial statements were as
follows

Leonard Peter Shore CPPIB (resigned 28 June 2011, re-appomnted 8 July 2011)
Martin Stephen Willam Stanley MEIFII {resigned 08 November 2010)

Marc Perusat MEIFII

Richard Abel MEIFII {appointed 22 November 2010)

Peter Dyer MEIFII {appointed 28 June 2011)

Graeme Francis Bevans CPPIB (resigned 31 July 2010)

Alain Carrier CPPIB

Daniel Karl Fetter CPPIB

Andreas Kdettenng CPPIB

Sir Stephen Wall INDEPENDENT  (resigned 25 July 2011}

The Secretanes who held office dunng the year and up to date of signing the financial statements were as
follows

James Thomas Laverty
Stephanie Cameron-Chileshe
Rachael Davidson

Directors’ indemnities

GDCLux, (an entity with control over Arrwave Solutions Limited) has granted an indemnity in the form permitted
by the Qualfying Third Party Indemnity Provisions of the Compames Act 2006 to Directors of its subsidiary
companies and the Directors of the Group are accordingly covered by this indemmity  This continues until such
time as any relevant imitation penods for bnnging claims (as defined in the indemnity} against the Direclor has
expired, or for so long as the past Director, where relevant, remains hable for any losses (as defined in the
indemnity)

Charitable contributions

The Group made denations to chanties of £15,286 dunng the year (2010 £10,113), of which £7,936 (2010
£8,187) were donations made to match employee donations to vangous chanties as part of the ‘Give as you eam'
scheme

Post balance sheet events

There were no post balance sheet events, other than the change in corporate tax rate descnbed under note 28 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financtal statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have prepared the group and parent company financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union  Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit or loss of the group for that year In prepanng these
financial statements, the directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed,

subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and
» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropnate to

presume that the company will continue i business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and the group and enable them to ensure that the financia! statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

Disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Group’'s auditors were
unaware The Directors have taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make
himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to estabhish that the Group’s auditors are aware of
that information

On behalf of the Board

Peter Dyer London
Director UK
11 October 2011




Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

We have audited the consohdated financiat statements of Guarcian Digital Communications Holdings
Limited for the year ended 30 June 2011 which compnse of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consobdated Cash Flow Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation i1s applicable law and International Financral Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Direclors’ Responsibiliies Statement set out on page 9, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being sahisfied that they give a true and
fair view Qur responsibility 1s 1o audit and express an cpinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opiruons, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body
n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not,
n giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibilty for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 1s shown or Into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor
consent in wniting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming ewidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
suffictent to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstalement,
whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the group’s circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation
of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
Directors' report to identfy matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements {f we become
aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the mmplications for our
report

Opinion en financial statements
In cur opinion the group financial statements

« gwe a true and fair iew of the state of the group’s affars as at 30 June 2011 and of its loss and cash
flows for the year then ended,

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in our opimion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the group
financial statements are prepared I1s consistent with the group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opmion

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

s we have not receved all the nformation and explanations we require for our audil

Kt

J Booker {Senior Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

t ondon, 13 October 2011
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Note

2014

2010

£000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and eguipment 8 711,994 776,302
Goodwll 9 578,190 577,291
Other intang ble assets 11 1,037,843 1,074,970
Investrments In subsidianes, joint ventures and associates 10 - 626
Deferred income tax assets 17 88,695 92,168
Total non-current assots 2,416,722 2,521,357
Current assets
Inventones 7 2,408 2,283
Trade and cther receivables 6 72,331 65,848
Cash and cash equivalents 5 24,503 15,658
Qther financial assets 18 - 2,186
Total current assots 99,242 85,975
Current llabilities
Borrowings 14 (10,479) (9.050)
Other financial habilities 18 ({65,870} (66,269)
Trade and other payables 12 {104,041} (103,445)
Deferred income 13 (64,103) (51,977)
Provisions for labilties and charges 16 (5,455} (17,061}
Total current llabllites (249,9438) (247,802)
Net current liabilitles (150,706} (161,827)
Total assets less current liabilities 2,266,016 2,359,530
Non-current liabilities
Bomrowings 14 (1,979,231} (1,969,883)
Other financial labliies 18 {191,545) (205,362)
Trade and other payables 12 {1,072} -
Deferred income 13 {206,451} (226,132)
Deferred income tax hiabilities 17 (269,176} (300,569)
Provisions for liabilthies and charges 16 (20,108) (19,731}
Total non-current liabllities (2,667,583) {2,721,677)
Net ltabilities (401,567) (362,147)
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to Owners of the Company
Ordinary shares 19 2 2
Share Premium 152,998 152,998
Foreign currency translation reserve (59) (31)
Accumulated losses (554,508) (515,1186)
Total shareholders' equity (401,567} (362,147)

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on pages 15to 52

The consohdated financial stalements on pages 11 to 52 were authorised by the Board of Directors on 11 October 2011

afy were signed on iis behalf

Peter Dyer "
Director
Company Registered Number 6143511
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Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2011

2010

Note £'000 £'000
Revenue 3(a) 390,299 413,227
Cost of sales (263,127} (298,634)
Gross profit 127,172 114,593
Administrative expenses (68,493) (79,101)
Operating profit 58,679 35,492
Operating profit before exceptional items 3 56,712 45,900
Exceptional items 3(c) 1,967 (10,408)
Operating profit 58,679 35,492
Finance income 3{b) 113 96
Finance costs 3 (122,939) (229,404)
Net finance costs (122,826) (229,308)
Share of loss of associate 10 {252) (302)
Loss before Income tax (64,399) (194,118)
Taxation 4 29,081 51,822
Loss for the year (35,318) {142 296)
Other comprehensive income - -
Currency translatton differences (28) (28)
Total comprehensive loss for the year {35,346} (142,324)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners of the company {35,346} (142,324)

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes on

pages 156t0 52
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Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Foreign
Currency
Ordinary Share Translation Accumulated

Shares Premium reserve Losses Total

Note £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 July 2009 2 152,998 (3} (335,885) {182,888)

Loss for the year - - - (142,296) (142,206)
Other comprehensive loss

Currency franslation differences - - {28) - (28)

Total comprehensive loss 2 152,998 {28) (142,296} (142,324)
Transactions with owners

Diadends paid 25 - - - (36,935) (36,935)

Balance at 30 June 2010 2 152,998 (31) (515,118) (362,147)

Loss for the year - . - (35,318) (35,318)
Other comprehensive loss

Currency transtation differences - - (28) - (28)

Total comprehensive loss - - (28) (35,318) {35,346}
Transactions with owners

Dwvidends paid 25 - - - {4,074) (4,074)

Balance at 30 June 2011 2 152,998 (59) (554,508) (401,567)

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction wath the accompanying notes on
' pages 15to 52
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Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 30 June 2011

Consolidated Statement of Cash Filows

2011 2010
Note £'000 £000
Cash Flows generated from operating activitles
Loss for the year (35,318) {142,296)
Depreciation charges 8 107,721 104,459
Amortisation charges 11 44,314 42,704
Net finance costs 3 M) 122,826 229,308
Share of loss of associate 10 252 302
Gain relating to business combination (966) .
Increase in other intangible assets 11 (2,723) (1,815)
Increase in trade and other recevables {3,090) (22,439)
(Decrease) Increase in trade, other payables and deferred income (7,081) 4,921
(Decrease) Increase in prowvisions for habilities and charges {(13,673) 7,684
(Increase)f Decrease 1n inventories (683) 6,471
Decrease In tax hiabilities (29,081) (51.940)
Net cash generated from operating activities 182,498 177,359
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (47,417) (86,515)
Investments i associates and subsidianes net of cash acquired (547) -
Interest receved from third parties 3 113 97
Net cash used in investing activities (47,851) {86,418)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid to third parties (106,897) (108,995)
Interest paid on related party loans 20(c) {17.426) (18,000}
Proceeds from borrowings 14 24,333 49,000
Repayment of borrowings 14 (21.711) (13,000}
Repayment of related party loans 20(c) - (18,315)
Dwidends paid {4,074) (36 935)
Net cash used in financing activities {(125,775) (146,245)
Net increase! (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,872 (55,304)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5 15,658 70,991
Exchange losses on cash {(27) (29)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 24,503 15,658

The above Consolidated Statemernt of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on pages 15 to

52
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Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consclidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1

Summary of Significant Accounting Pclicies

The significant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are stated
to assist In a general understanding of these financial statements

(@

(b)

(c)

General information

The principa!l actvities of Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited (‘the Company’), its
subsidiary, associate and joint venture undertakings {together 'the Group') are the development
and prowvision of mobile Information and Communication Technology (“ICT") to Public Safety
Orgamisations in Great Bntamn

The Company 1s a private imited company domiciled and registered in England and Wales The
registered address 1s Charter Court, 50 Windsor Road, Slough, Berkshire SL1 2EJ The
registered number of the Company 1s 6143511

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), and
IFRIC (International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee)} interpretations and the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to Companies reporting under IFRS The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the valuation of financial
assets and financial iabilities (including denvative instruments} at fair value through profit or loss

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 1(z)

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set
out below These policies have been consistently apphed to ali the years presented, unless
otherwise stated

A statement on going concern 15 included in the Directors’ Report The Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and therefore can continue to adopt the going concern basis
In preparing the financial statements

While there are nsks to the monthly profile of cash flows from operating activities due to the
potential for delays to the delivery of programmes, these nsks are partrally mitigated by a
matching delay in capital expenditure The Group has a strong opening cash position with access
to further committed bank facilities Therefore these financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis

Consolidation
1) Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are all entties over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
nghts The existence and effect of potential voting nghts that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity
Subsidianes are fully consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases
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Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1
(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Consolidation {continued)

The acquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisihon of subsidianes by the
Group The cost of an acquisition 1s measured as the farr value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and habilittes incurred or assumed at the date of exchange Costs directly
attnbutable to the acquisition are expensed as incurred Identifiable assets acquired and habilities
and contingent habilities assumed n a business combination are measured wmally at ther far
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minonty interest The excess of the
cost of acquisihon over the far vatue of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired
1s recorded as goodwili (see note 9) If the cost of acquisition I1s less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference 1s recognised directly in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive income

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are elimnated Unrealised losses are atso eliminated but considered an impairment
indicator of the asset transferred Accounting policies have been applied consistently across the

group
#) Joint Ventures and associates

A joint venture 1s an entity that 1s jointly controlled by two or more entihes Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharng of control over an economic achvity, and exists only when the
strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control

An associate 1s an entity over which another entity has significant influence but net controt and
that 1s neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a Joint venture Significant influence 1s the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but 1s not control or joint
control over those policles

The Group's share of the results of joint ventures and associates s included i the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income using the equity method of accounting Investments in joint
ventures and associates are carmed in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost plus post-
acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the entity, less any impaiment in
value

If the Group's share of losses 1n & joint venture or associate equals or exceeds its investment In
the joint venture or associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has curred
obligations to do so or made payments on behalf of the joint venture or associate Unrealised
gains ansing from transactions with joint ventures and associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the entity

All group companies have 30 June as their year end Consoldated group financial statements are
prepared usmng umiform accounting policies for like transactions Accounting policies of
subsidianes have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the group

16



Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1
(d)

(e)

(N

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment compnise mainly network assets and are stated at histonical cost
less accumulated deprecitation The cost of property, plant and equipment includes directly
attributable incremental costs incurred In their acquisition and installation Subsequent costs are
meluded in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropnate, only
when 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured rehably

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment over their estmated useful lives on a
straight-line basis from the date they are brought into use The lives assigned to property, plant
and equipment are

Property, Plant and Equipment 2to 15 years

The assets' useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date
An asset’s carrying amount 1s written down immediately to its recoverable amount If the asset's
carrying amount Is greater than its estimated recoverable amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by companng the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within ‘Administrative expenses' in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income No gains or losses occurred dunng the year reported

Goodwill

Goodwll represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the net iIdentifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition Goodwill
on acqusihons of subsidianes I1s included In non-current assets and 1s tested annually for
impairment and carned at cost less accumulated impairment losses Impawrment losses on
goodwill are not reversed Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testng The
allocation 1s made to those cash-generating umits or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected ta benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose The Company
allocates goodwill to each entity acquired

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit 1s
disposed of the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of 1s included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or l0ss on disposal of the operation

Goodwill cisposed of in this circumstance 18 measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained

Other Intangible Assets

Other intangible assets represent customer contracts and related customer relationships that are
recorded at fair value on acquisition, less amortisation These assets acquired through a business
combination are capitalised separately from goodwill and are amortised on a straight line basis
over a 28 7 year penod, which reprasents management's best estimate of their economic usefu!
hfe Other intangible assets also contain marketing nghts associated with the London 2012
Olympics that are recorded at cost less amortisation The nghts are amortised based on the
usage of the nights over a 4 year period Intellectual property has been acquired as part of the
acquisition of Kelvin Connect Limited representing software and products recorded at far value
on acqusitton and are amortised over 9 5 years on a straight ine basis
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Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1
(@)

(h

®

o

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impatrment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful hfe {including goodwll) are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for imparment Assets that are subject to amortisabon are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recogrised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds Its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use For the purposes of assessing impatrment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately dentffiable cash flows
{cash-generating units)

Inventories

Inventones comprise handsets, control room hardware and work in progress This 1s stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value Cost 1s determined using the firstan, first-out {(FIFO)
method and comprises costs of purchase and costs incurred 1n bringing inventory to its current
location and condition  Provisions are made, f necessary, for obsolete, slow-mowving or defective
stock

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows
include cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks

Financial agsets

The Group classifies s financial assets as fair value through profit or loss and loans and
receivables The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired Management determines the classification of its financial assets at imbal recogrition

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading A financiat
asset 1s classified in this category if acguired principally for the purpose of seling in the short
term Dervatives are also categonsed as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges
Assets In this category are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months,
otherwise, they are classified as non-current

Loans and recervables

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market They are included in current assets, except for matunties
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date These are classified as non-current assets
The Group's loans and recevables compnse trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents in the balance sheet

If the market for a financial asset 1s not active (and for unlisted secunties), the Group establishes
farr value by using valuation techniques These include the use of recent amm’s length
transactions, reference to other nstruments that are substantally the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and conventional option pncing models making maximum use of observable market
inputs and relying as little as possible on entty-specific inputs

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there I1s objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets 1s impaired Impawrment testing of trade recervables
15 descnbed in note 1(k)
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Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1
(k)

0

(m)

(n)

(o)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receiwvables are recognised nittally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest methed, less provision for impairment A provision for impairment
of trade receivables 1s established when there I1s objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the receivables Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probabiity that the debter will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delnquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are
considered indicators that the trade receivable 1s impaiwred The amount of the prowvision 1s the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estmated future cash
flows, discounted at the onginal effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss Is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income within administrative expenses When a trade
recetvable i1s uncollectible, It is written off against the allowance account for trade recewvables
Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously wntten off are credited against administrative
expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Trade and other payables

Trade payables initially are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred except for transachon costs as descnbed below in “n®
Borrowings

Subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, interest beanng
labiiies are measured at amortised cost and classified as financial habihbes Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount 1s recogrised in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income over the year of the borrowings using the
effective interest method Transaction costs are included in the carrying amount and are charged
to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income over the year of the borrowings using
the effective interest method

Foreign currencies

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and Hiabilhes are reperted as part of the
fair value gain or loss i finance cost or Income

(1) Functional and presentation currency

items included In the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment 1n which the entity operates (the 'functional currency') The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterhing (GBP}, which i1s the Company’s functional
and presentatton currency

(1)) Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated, at the exchange rate on the day
the transaction occurred, to the funchonal currency of the entity Monetary assets and habilites
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date
Foreign exchange differences are recogrised in the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive
Income Non-monetary assets and liabilittes denominated in foreign currency are translated at the
foreign currency exchange rate prevailing at the dates the values were determined and differences
are taken to the reserves

Foreign exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equwalents are presented in the
Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive Income as finance income or cost
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Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements (continued)

1
(o)

(p)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)
{1} Group Companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hypennflationary economy) that have a funchonal currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as follows

» assets and labilites for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet,

« ncome and expenses for each income statement are franslated at average exchange
rates {unless this average 1s not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the transachons), and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders' equity When a foreign operation 1s parbally disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwill and farr value adjustments ansing on the acquisiion of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilihes of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate

Taxation

The current income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax i1s provided in full, using the hability method, on temporary differences ansing
between the tax bases of assets and liabiites and ther carrying amounts in the financial
statements However, the deferred income tax 1s not accounted for if 1t anses from inibal
recogmition of an asset or hability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred income tax 1s
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 1s
realised or the deferred income tax hability 15 settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utidised

Deferred income tax i1s provided on temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference 1s controlled by the Group and
it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Income tax relating to items recognised direcly in equity is recogmsed in equity, not in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income

Deferred income tax assets and liabilibes are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabiities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on erther the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there 1s an intention to settle the balances on a net basis
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1
(a)

r

(s)

()

(w

v)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {continued)

Employee benefits
Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contrnbution plan into which it pays contributions on behalf of
employees The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid The contnbutions are recegrised as an employee benefit expense when they are due

Provisions for habiities and charges

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made If the effect of the time value of
money 1S matenal, provisions aré discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where
appropnate, the nsks specific to the habiity Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of tme 1s recognised as a finance cost Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses

Provisions are made for the discounted future cost of restoration of mast sites at the date of
acquisition of the site, for potential additional costs in respect of delayed contractual milestones,
onerous contracts and restructunng costs

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equrty as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Dividend distribution

Dividend distnbution to the company’'s shareholders 1s recognised as a liability 1n the group’s
financial statement in the penod in which the dividends are approved by the company's
shareholders

Exceptional ltems

The Group separately 1dentfies and discloses one-off or unusual items (termed ‘exceptional
items’) This prowides a meamingful analysis of the underlying trading results of the Group and
aids readers’ understanding of the impact of such items Therefore, 1n the discussion of the
Group's results of operations, reference 1s made to measurements before and after exceptional
items Exceptional items may not be comparable to similarly titlted measures used by other
companies

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Dernvatives are imitially recognised at fair value on the date a denvative contract 1s entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value

The far values of various denvative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed 1n note
16 The full farr value of a hedging denvative s classified as a non-current asset or liability when
the remaining matunty of the hedged item 1s more than 12 months, and as a current asset or
hability when the remaming matunty of the hedged item 1s less than 12 months

Derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting and are therefore accounted for as
derivatives at farr value through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Changes
in the fair value of any of these denvative instruments are recognised immediately in the
Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive Income within ‘net finance costs' (see note 3(b))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{w} Revenue recognition

Revenue compnses the far value of the consideration received or receivable duning the ordinary
course of business net of discounts and sales taxes and after elmination of sales within the
Group

Revenue consisting primanly of regular fees for ongoing services, such as network access,
control room services, managed terminal services and addhional coverage solutions are
recognised from implementation over the remaining year to which the services relate

Revenue for the sale of equipment 1s recognised when it 1s probable that the economic benefits
associated with a transaction will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue and the
assoclated costs can be measured reliably

Revenue arnsing from separable installation and connection services 1s recogmsed when it Is
earned, upon activation Revenue from the implementation of penpheral and other equipment 1s
recogrised when all the significant nisks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer,
which 1s normally the date the equipment 1s delivered and accepted by the customer

Revenue from long-term contractual arrangements 1s recognised based on the percentage of
completion method The stage of completion 1s estmated using an approprniate measure
according to the nature of the contract For long-term services contracts revenue 1s recogrised on
a straight line basis over the term of the contract However, If the performance pattern 15 other
than straight line, revenue 1s recognised as services are provided, usually on an output or
consumption basis For fixed price contracts, including contracts to design and build
communicaticns solutions, revenue I1s recognised by reference to the stage of completion, as
determined by the proportion of costs incurred relative to the estimated total contract costs, or
other measures of completion such as site and vehicle installation and contract milestone
customer acceptance

Differences between revenue recognised and revenue billed to the customer give nse to accrued
and deferred income

Interest iIncome 1s recognised using the effective interest methed
{x) Leases

The group leases certain equipment Leases where a significant portion of the nsks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases Rentals under
operating leases are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in equal
annual instalments over the penods of the leases

Lease of property, plant and equipment where the group has substantially ali the nsks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases Finance leases are capitalised at the
lease's commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value
of the mintmum lease payments

Each lease payment I1s allocated between the liabiity and finance charges The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included In long term borrowings The interest
element of the finance costs 15 ¢charged to the income statement over the lease penod so as to
produce a constant penodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability for each
period The equipment acquired under finance leases 1s depreciated over the shorter of the usefut
life of the asset and the lease term
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1
(y)

@

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounting Standards and interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments to and interpretations of existing standards have been
published that are mandatory for accounting penods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 or later
periods but which the Company has chosen not to early adopt The new standards and
interpretations, applicable to the Group which will be adopted by the Company as approprate are
as follows

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, 1ssued in December 2009 This addresses the classification and
measurement of financial assets and 1s likely to affect the Group's accounting for its financial
assets The standard is not applicable untl 1 January 2015 but s availlable for early adopton
The Group 1s yet to assess IFRS 9's full impact

The Group has not elected to early adopt these amendments The Group s currently assessing
the impact of these amendments and does not expect at this stage that they would significantly
impact the Group's financial position

Cntical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting polictes A significant change in the facts and circumstances on
which these estmates are based could have a matenal negative impact on the Group’s eamings
and financial positon The areas involving & higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptiens and estimates are significant to the financial statements are discussed below

(1} Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Accounting for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets involves the use of estimates
for determining (a) the useful lives of the assets, over which they are to be depreciated or
amortised, and {b) the existence and amount of any impairment Details of property, plant and
equipment are provided in note 8 Details of intangible assets, which represent customer contract
and related customer relationships, are provided in note 11

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight ine basis over their estimated useful
ves When the Group estimates useful hives vanous factors are considered including expected
technological obsolescence and the expected usage of the asset The Group regularly reviews
these asset lives and changes them as necessary to reflect the useful estimated current
remaining lives in hght of technological changes, future econormic utihsation and the physical
condition of the assets concerned A significant change n these facts and circumstances may
have a matenal impact on the carrying value of these assets An increase/decrease Iin the useful
Ife by 3 years would result in a decrease/increase to depreciation expense for the year of
approximately £27 millien

Intangible assets were acquired through a business combination and are amortised on a straight
ine basis over a 287 year period, which represents management's best estimate of their
economuc useful lfe An increase/decrease in the useful life by 3 years would result in a
decreasefincrease to annual amortisation expense of approximately £5 million
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1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(@) Cnitical accounting estimates and judgments {continued)
(1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of the asset 1s determined as the twgher of farr value less costs to sell
and the value in use If it 1s not possible to detenmine a recoverable amount for the individual
assets, the assets are assessed together in the smallest group of assets for which a reliable
recoverable amount can be determined 1n an overall assessment

The determination of whether the impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangibles 1s
necessary, involves the use of estimates that include, but are not limited to, the analysis of the
cause of the potential impawrment m value, the timing of such potental smpairment and an
estimate of the amount of the impairment The Group considers technological obsolescence,
discontinuance of services and other changes In circumstances that indicate a need to perform
an imparrment test A significant change in the facts and circumstances that were relied upon in
making the estimates may trigger the requirement for recording an impairment and may have a
materal adverse impact on the operating results and financial condition of the Group

(1) Goodwill

Goodwill 1s not subject to a regular amorbisaton charge and 1s instead tested annually to
determine whether any impaiment has ansen This 1s completed by calculating the recoverable
amount of cash-generating units based on value in use These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements to calculate expected cash flows Management makes assumptions
including, but not imited to, the discount rate to be applied, technologicat evolution and revenue
growth rates in calculating expected cash flows A significant change in these facts and
crcumstances may have a material mpact on the carrying value of goodwill Details of goodwill
are provided in note 9

(i} Deferred tax assets and habilities

The Group evaluates the recoverability of deferred tax assets based on estmates of future
earnings The ability to recover these taxes depends ullimately on the Group’s ability to generate
taxable earnings over the course of the year for which the deferred tax assets remain deductible
This analysis 1s based on the estimated reversal of deferred taxes as well as estimates of
taxable earnings, which are sourced from internal projections and are updated to reflect the
tatest trends

The appropnate classification of tax assets and habilities depends on a series of factors mcluding
estimates as to the timing and matenalisation of deferred tax assets and the forecast tax payment
schedule Actual Income tax receipts and payments could differ from the estmates made by the
Group as a result of changes In tax legislation or unforeseen transactions that could affect tax
balances Details of deferred tax assets and liabilities are provided n note 17
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1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(z) Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

{iv) Revenue recognition

Certain contractual arrangements contain significant trming differences between the date of cash
receipt and the point of revenue recognition at a stage of completion Where cash 1s received In
advance of revenue recognition, the cash receipt it 1s recorded as deferred income 1n the balance
sheet and released to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income over the rematning
pernod of the contract Where revenue 1s earned in advance of an invotce being raised, revenue 1s
recogmsed as accrued income in the balance sheet and released when an invoice 1s raised

Management's Judgement ts applied to determine when a contract satisfies the above critena and
therefore a change to this cntena could have a matenal effect on the earnings of the Group

{v) Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when an event in the past gives nse to a current obligation for the
Group, settlement of which requires an outlay that 1s considered probable and ¢an be estmated
reliably The obligation may be legal or constructive, deriving from regulations, contracts, normal
practices or public commitments that lead third parties to reasonably expect that the Group will
assume certain responsibilities The amount of the provision 1s determined based on the best
estimate of the outflow of resources required to settle the obligation, taking into account all the
avallable informaticn

No provision 1s recogrised if the amount of liability cannot be estmated reliably In this case, the
relevant information 1s disclesed in the notes to the financial statements

Given the uncertainties inherent In the estmates used to determine the amount of provision,
actual outflows of resources may differ from the amounts recognised onginally on the basis of the
estimates
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2 Business Combinations

Acgusition of Kelvin Connect Limited

On 2 September 2008 the Group acquired 37% of the voting share capital of Kelvin Connect Limited for £1
milion On 2 February 2011 the Group acquired the remaining 63% of the voting share capital and
obtained 100% control of Kelvin Connect Limited, an unfisted company based i Glasgow, specialising in
the development and provision of mobile information and communication technology to Public Safety
Organssations in England, Scotland and Wales

The goodwill ansing from the acquisition 1s attnbutable to anticipated future revenue streams

Falr value recognised
on acquisition

£'000
Cash 559
Contingent consrderation 1,792
Total conslderatlon transferred 2,351
Fair value of equity interest in Kehan Connect Limited held before
the business combination 1,339
Total conslderation 3,690
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed
Property, plant & equipment 4
Cash and cash equivalents 12
Cther recevables 93
Prepayments and accrued income 2]

118

Trade payables (16)
Other payables (49)
Accruals {7)
Deferred mcome (558)
Total identifiable assets (512)
Intangibfes on consolidation 4,464
Deferred tax liability {1,164) 2,791
Goodwill {note 9) 899

The following table summanses the consideration paid for Kelvin Connect Limited and the amounts of the
assets acquired and habihties assumed recognised at the acquisition date

The total cost of the combination was £2 351,000 compnsed of cash and deferred cash consideration as
outlined above
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Business Combinations (continued)

The contingent consideration arrangement requires the group to pay the former owners of Kelvin Connect
Limited £2 6 milllon upon the achievenent of specific business deliverables

The potentral undiscounted amount of all future payments that the group could be required to make under
this arrangement 1s between Enil and £2 6 million

The Group recogrised losses of £252,000 as a result of equity accounting for its 37% equity interest in
Kelvin Connect Limited held before the business combination The loss ts included in Share of loss of
associate in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ending 30 June 2011

The revenue included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income since 2 February 2011
contnbuted by Kelvin Connect Limited was £238,000 Kelvin Connect Limited also contnbuted a loss of
£821,000 over the same period

Had Keivin Connect Limied been consolidated from 1 July 2010, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income would show revenue of £220,000 and a loss of £1,385,000

3 Loss for the Year

(a) The loss before income tax includes the following specific items of revenue and expense

2011 2010

£'000 £ 000

Service revenue 374,809 355,400
Implementation and other non-recumng revenue 15,490 57,827
Total Revanue 390,299 413,227

Sales of services consist of Income from the development and provision of Mobile Information and
Communication Technology services to Public Safety Organisations

200 2010
Note £'000 £000
Depreciation of propesty, plant and equipment 8 107,721 104,459
Amortisation of other intangible assets 11 44,314 42 704
Staff costs 23 50,153 54,215
Auditors’ remuneration
- The audit of the Company’s annual accounts 36 39
-The audit of accounts of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant 159 175
to legistation
- Tax services 49 69
- Other services 11 91
Operating lease rentals payable
- Operating mimmum lease payments 34,276 34,728

Foreign exchange losses 37 28
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3 Loss for the Year (continued)

{b) Net finance costs

2011 2010

Note £'000 £000

Bank inferest recevable 113 96

Total finance income 13 96

Fair value gains/{losses) on interest swaps 11,157 (94,304)

Interest payable to parent entiies 20 (18,000) (18,000}

Interest payable on external borrowings {105,982} (107.,829)
Finance lease habiities (39)

" Prowisions Unwinding of discount 16 {2,390} (1,692)
Other finance charges™ (7,685) (7579
Total other finance costs {134,096) {135,100}
Total finance costs (122,939) (229,404)
Net finance costs (122,826) (229,308)

* Other finance charges includes amortisation of capitalised transaction costs and unwinding of discounts
relating to contingent consideration

¢) Exceptionalitems

Exceptional items are those significant items which are separately disclosed by virtue of therr size or
incidence to enable a full understanding of the Group's financial performance Duning the year ended 30
June 2010 the Company announced a restructuning program including the closure of two offices and a
review of its workforce with a target to reduce headcount by 140 Following union and employee
consultation more than 150 positions were made redundant, all voluntanly, the majonty of which left the
business in August 2010 The Company recognised costs in relation to this restructuring of £10 4 million
before tax compnsing staff redundancy and associated costs Rewvisions of the provision resulted in a £1 0
mitlion credit to the Statement of Comprehensive Income i the year ended 30 June 2011

The exceptional items include £0 97 muthon relating to unrealsed gain on the revaluation of the holdings In
Kelvin Connect Limited as an associate before it was fully acquired this year

d) Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

2011 2010

Note £'000 £ 000

Operating profit before exceptional items 56,712 45,900
Add Depreciation 8 107,721 104,459
Add Amortisation of customer contracts and intellectual property 11 42,630 42,400
Earnings before intarest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 207,063 192,759

Amortisation of marketing nghts 1s not included in the reconciliation above as this reflects management's
view of EBITDA
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4 Taxation

2011 2010
Note £'000 £000
(a) Analysis of the charge in the year
Current tax cornpnses
- Adjustment in respect of prior year - -
Total current tax - -
Deferred tax compnses
- Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (14,195) (51,822)
- Impact of tax change (14,886) -
Total deferred tax 17 {29,081) (51,822)
Taxation {29,081) (51.822)

The income tax for the year 1s lower (2010 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
(26%) The standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK changed from 28% to 26% with effect from 1 Apnl
2011 The Group does not have current tax payable therefore the applicable rate of tax for the yearis

26% The differences are reconciled as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000

{b) Loss before income tax {64,397) {194,118}

Loss on ordinary achwviies at rate of corporation tax of 26% (2010 28%) (16,743) (54,353)
Factors affecting tax charge

- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,600 2,608

- Impact of tax rate change {14,886) -

- Gan on business combinalion not taxable (251) -

- Losses not recognised 199 23

Taxation (29,081) {51,822)
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5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2011 2010
£000 £000

Cash at bank 24,503 14,583
Short term money market investments - 1,065
24,502 15,658

{a} Cash at bank
Cash at bank represents cash not placed on overmight deposit and 1s non interest beanng
(b) Short term money market investments

The short term money market investments outstanding at the period end mature overnight and is interest
beanng

{c) Bank overdraft

The Group does not have an overdraft arrangement in place

Credit nisk

Cash and cash eguivalents credit risk 1s momitored on an overall basis by the treasury function through the

application of counter party credit hmits which are dependent on the long term credit rating of the
counterparty The credit imits are as follows

20mMm

Long term rating Counterparty hmit Number of
£'000 Balance £000 Counterpartias
AAA 75,000 - -
AA 50,000 24,503 1
A 25,000 - -
BBB 10,000 - -
24,503
Long term rating Counterparty limit 2010
y Balance £'000 Number of Counterpa_mes
AAA 75,000 h -
AA 50,000 15,658 1
A 25,000 - -
BBB 10,000 - -
15,658
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5§ Cash and Cash Equivalents {continued)

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates the far value Cash and cash equivalents

are denominated in the following currencies

2011

2010

£'000 £ 000
Pounds Sterling (GBP) 23,902 13,798
Norwegran Krone ( NOK) 330 999
Euro (EUR) 271 861
24,503 15,658
6 Trade and Other Receivables
201 2010
£'000 £ 000
Trade recevables 37,016 28,394
Less provision for mpaiment of trade receivables {117) (27)
Trade receivables — net 36,899 28,367
Qther receivables 4,702 1,607
Prepayments 26,590 18,326
Accrued ncome 4,140 17,548
72,331 65,848

As at 30 June 2011 19 invoices were considered to be impaired (2010 eleven) and therefore provided for
in the year The amount of impairment recognised as an expense dunng the year was £90,000 (2010
£27,000) and 15 included 1n administrative expenses The carrying amount of trade receivables at year end

was In the following currencies

201

2010

£'000 £'000
Pounds Sterling {GBP) 36,899 28,344
Euro (EUR}) - 23
Trade receivables 36,899 28,367

The fair value of trade receivables was equal to the carrying value at year end
any collateral as security

Movements in provisions for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

The Group does not hold

£'000
As at 1 July 2009 (152)
Receivable wntten off during the year as 152
uncollectable
Prowsion for receivables impaiment {27)
At 30 June 2010 27
Receivable wniten off dunng the year as uncollectable
Prowision for receivables impairment (90)
At 30 June 2011 (117)
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6 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired are shown below

Days outstanding 2011 2010
£0900 £'000

31 to 90 days 7,116 3.364
91 to 180 days 2,545 1,254
Greater than 180 days 151 342
Provision (117) 27
9,695 4,933

The above balances relate to number of iIndependent customers, majonty of customers are Public Safety

Organisations and local authonties, for whom there 1S no recent history of default

Trade recewvables presented In the Consoldated Balance Sheet are net of allowances for doubtful
receivables, estimated by the Group's management based on prior experience and therr assessment of
the current economic environment Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit
risk 1s monitored on an engoing basis Credit nsk I1s not considered significant as the majonty of customers

are Public Safety Organisations and local authornties

At the balance sheet date there were no significant concentratons of credit nsk, with exposure spread over
a number of counter-parties and customers The maximum exposure to credit risk Is represented by the
carrying amount of each class of receivable mentioned above The Group does not hold any collateral as

security

The maximum exposure to credit nsks as shown below

2011

00

£000 £000
Trade and other recevables {excluding prepayments) 45,741 47,552
Cash and cash equivalents 24,503 15,658
70,244 63,210

7 Inventories
2011 2010
£'000 £000
Handsets, hardware and work in progress 2,408 2,283

The cost of iInventones recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to £4,396,000

(2010 £35,499,000)
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8 Property, Plant and Equipment

£000
Cost
As at 1 July 2009 1,262,617
Additions 81,933
As at 30 June 2010 1,344,550
Additions 43,409
Acqursitions 4
As at 30 June 2011 1,387,963
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 July 2009 463,789
Charge for the year 104 459
As at 30 June 2010 568,248
Charge for the year 107,721
As at 30 June 2011 675,969
Net Book Value
As at 1 July 2009 798,828
As at 30 June 2010 776,302
As at 30 June 2011 711,994

Depreciation has been charged to cost of sales during the year, totaling a value of £107,721,000
{2010 £104,459,230}

Property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts where the group 1s a lessee under a finance
lease for computer equipment

2011 2010

£000 £'000
Cost — capitalised finance leases 2,347 -
Accumulated depreciation {427) -
Net book value 1,920 -

a3



Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

9 Goodwill
Total
£7000
Group cost and net book value
As at 1 July 2009 and 30 June 2010 §77,291
Additions 899
As at 30 June 2011 578,190

Goodwill has ansen from the acquisition of Airwave Solutions Limited and Kelvin Connect Limited 1t has
an indefinite economic useful life and 1s not subject to amortisation

impairment testing

The Group performs an annual goodwill impaiment test, which 1s based on farr value calculations of the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit ("CGU"} using the income approach

Guardian group compnses of one CGU, Airwave Solutions Limited (ASL) ASL compnses of two CGUs,
that 1s the cash generated by ASL as a standalone business and the cash generated by the newly
acquired wholly owned subsidiary Kelvin Connect Limited This represents the smallest identifiable group
of assets that generate cash inflows that have goodwill and are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other groups of assets

A discounted cash flow anzalysis was prepared This is an analysis of the unlevered cash flow projections
denved from the five year plan approved by the Board They reflect management's expectation of revenue
growth, operating costs and margin for the CGUs based on past expenence Cash flows beyond the five
year plan period have been extrapolated using an estmated terminal growth rate of 2% This rate does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the UK

The discount rate of 8 2% apphed to the unlevered cash flow projections 1S a market-based post-tax
weighted average cost of capital for the Group, which used the equity betas of 9 comparable publicly
traded companies compiled from monthly stock price data for the last 5 years

The fair value of the CGUs have been calculated at year end and s greater than the present carrying
value As the CGU's fair value exceed the asset's carrying amount, the assets have been concluded as
not impaired

The forecasts are most sensitive to changes in projected revenue growth rates in the first five years of the
forecast penod Similarly an increase in WACC by 1% or decrease mn growth rate by 1 5% would result In
an impairment
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10 Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

Subsidiaries
Country of

incorporation  OQwnership%  Type of share  Type of holding
Guardian Digital Communications Limited UK 100% Ordmary Direct
Airwave Solutions Limited UK 100% Ordinary Indirect
Airwave Solutions International Limited UK 100% QOrdinary Indirect
Asrwave Solutions Norway AS Norway 100% Ordinary Indirect
Asrwave Solutions Deutschland GmbH Germany 100% Ordinary Indirect
Kelvin Connect Limited UK 100% Ordinary Indirect

During the year ended 30 June 2009, Airwave Solutions International Limited {(ASIL} was incorporated
Airwave Solutions Limuted acquired all of the shares on incorporation for £1 (one ordinary share) Airwave
Solutions International Limited acquired all of the shares of Airwave Solutions Norway AS and Airwave
Solutions Deutschland GmbH on incorporation  All these entities are included within the consohdated
results

On 2 September 2008 the group acquired 37% of the share capital of Kelvin Connect Limited for the
consideration of £1,000,000 On 2 February 2011 the group acquired the remaining 63% of the voting
share capital for the consideration and obtained 100% contro! of Kelvin Connect Limited The acquisition
has been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations (See Note 2)

All of the above entities are included within the consolidated results

Joint Ventures

Country of Assets Liabilittes Revenues Expenses Ownership%
incorporation
Australia 2011 A2 (£1) - - -
Arwave Solutions Australia Pty Lid 2010 AS2 (E1) - - 50%

On 6 August 2010 the Group disposed its 50% holding th Aurwave Solutions Australia Pty Ltd (ASA) for
AS$1, which was acquired dunng the year ended 30 June 2009 for A$1 ASA did not trade duning the penod
of ownership

Associates

Investment in Assoclates

Kelvin Connect Limited £000
At 1 July 2009 928
Share of loss (302)
At 30 June 2010 626
Share of loss to February 2011 {252)
At 2 February 2011 374
Transferred to subsidiary (374)

At 30 June 2011 -

Total revenues for the seven months pernod to 2 February 2011 was £82,000 (Year ended 30 June 2010
£619,000) Share of loss for the seven months pencd to 2 February 2011 was £252,000 {Year ended 30
June 2010 £302,000)
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10 Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates
(continued)

The Group’s share of the results of its pnncipal associates, all of which are unlisted, and its aggregate
assets and habilities, are as follows

Country of Assets  Liabllites Revenues Expenses Loss
incorporation Year £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 Ownership %
Kelvin 2011 - - - - . -
Connect United
Limited Kingdom 2010 235 66 229 (531) (302) 37%

On 2 Septernber 2008 the company acquired 37% of the share capital of Kelvin Connect Limited for the
consideration of £1,000,000 Cn 2 February 2011 the company acquired the remaining 63% of the share
capital for the consideration of £559,000 and contingent consideration of £1,792,000 and obtained 100%
control of Kelvin Connect Limited This company has been accounted under the equity method for the
seven months penod to 2 February 2011 The value of the investments are supported by their underiying
assels

11 Other Intangible Assets

Customer Marketing Intellectual
contracts rights Property Total
£000 £'000 £'000s £'000

Group cost
As at 1 July 2008 1,208,359 - - 1,208,359
Additions 1,815 1,815
As at 30 June 2010 1,208,359 1,815 - 1,210,174
Additions - 2,723 4,464 7,187
As at 30 June 2011 1,208,359 4,538 4,464 1,217,361
Accumulated Amartisation
As at 1 July 2009 92,500 - - 92,500
Charge for the year 42,400 304 - 42,704
As at 30 June 2010 134,900 304 - 135,204
Charge for the year 42,400 1,684 230 44,314
As at 30 June 2011 177,300 1,988 230 179,518
Net Book value
As at 1 July 2009 1,115,859 - - 1,115,859
As at 30 June 2010 1,073,459 1,511 - 1,074,970
As at 30 June 2011 1,031,059 2,550 4,234 1,037,843

Other intangible assets relate to customer contracts and related customer relationships and marketing
nghts The amortisation expense for customer contracts 1s included within cost of sales in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income The remaining amortisation penod of customer contracts 15 25
years

The amorhsation expense for marketing nghts 1s included within admunistrative expenses in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income The remaming amortisabon penod of the marketing
rights 15 2 years

Intellectuat property has been acquired as part of the acquisition of Kelvin Connect Limited representing
software and products Amortisation expense 1s included In costs of sales in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive iIncome The remaining amortisation period 1s 9 years
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12 Trade and Other Payables

Notes

2011

2010

£000 £'000
Current
Trade payables 14,097 22,582
Taxatton and social securnty 1,724 1,318
Other payables 15,066 7,363
Contingent consideration 826 -
Accrued expenses 72,328 72,182
104,041 103,445
Non Current
Contingent consideration 1,072 -
The carrying value of trade and other payables approximate their fair value
13 Deferred Income
2011 2010
£'000 £000
Deferred income — current 64,103 51,977
Deferred income = non cumrent 206,451 226,132
Total 270,554 278,109
The carrying value of deferred income approximates its far value
14 Borrowings
Accrued
retum /
nterest
2011 2011
Secured and unsecured borrowings Note £'000
Non-current unsecured borrowings
Eurobond - GDCLux 150,000
Loan - GDCLux 127,285
Total related panty facilities 277,285
Non-current secured borrowings
HSBC Facility A 1 1,500,000
Less capitalised transactton costs {3,823)
HSBC Facilty B i 204,000
Finance lease labilities 15 1,768
Total non-current borrowings 1,979,231
Currant unsecured borrowings
Eurobond — GDCLux
Loan — GDCLlux 9,500
Current secured borrowings
HSBC Facility A 124
HSBC Facility C m -
Finance lease habtlities 15 855
Total current borrowings 10,479
Total Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1,989,710
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14 Borrowings {continued)

Accrued
Interest
2010 2010

Secured and unsecured borrowings Note £'000 £000
Non-current unsecured borrowings
Eurobond - GOCLux 150,000
Loan - GDClLux 127,285
Total related party faciities 277,285
Non-current secured borrowings
HSBC Facility A 1,500,00
Less captalised transaction costs (11,402)
HSBC Faciity B 204,000
Finance lease habilities -
Total non-current borrowlngs 1 1,969,883
Current unsecured borrowings
Eurobond — GDCLux n 8,926
Loan — GDCLux - 8,926
Current secured borrowings 15
HSBC Facility A 124 124
HSBC Facility C -
Finance lease habilihes 1 -
Total current borrowlings 9,050
Total Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1,978,933

Notes

The current portion of the above locans and borowings due within 1 year 1s £10,479,000 (2010
£9,050,000) as disclosed in the balance sheet under current liabilities

The HSBC borrowing facilites are secured over all of the Company's assets and all of GOCL's assets
including the shares held in Airwave Solutions Limited The pnor year borrowings have been restated to
reflect the rectassification from unsecured to secured borrowings

1) HSBC Facility As a £1,500 million facility, fully utilised on acquisition of Airwave Solutions Limited The
facility carnes a floating rate, fixed by interest rate swaps

1) HSBC Facility B 1s a £250 millon capital expenditure faciity The facility carnes a floating interest rate

1) HSBC Facility C 1s a £50 million working capital facility The facility cames a floating interest rate

All borrowings are denorminated in Pounds Stering (GBP)
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18 Finance lease liabilities

Note 2011 2010
Tota) Total
£'000 £000
Gross lease liabilities

Within one year 911 -
Between 2 and 5 years 1,830 -
After 5 years - -
2,741 -
Future interest {117} -
Present value of finance lease habilities 2,624 -

The present value of finance lease hiabilities 1s repayable as follows
Within one year 855 -
Between 2 and 5 years 1,769 -
After 5 years - -
Total lease liabilities payable after more than one year 2,624 -

The fair value of lease labiities as at 30 June 2011 amounted to £2,624,000 The fair value Is the present value of

the mmmum lease payments

16 Provisions for liabilities and charges

201 2010
Total Total
£'000 £000
Current 5,455 17,061
Non-current 20,108 19,731
25,563 36,792

Movement Iin provisions

Movements in each class of provisions are set out below

QOnerous
Site Restoration Contract Delays Restructuring Contracts Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000

As at 1 July 2009 13,643 11,340 2,494 - 27,377
Additienal prowvision 800 11,483 966 13,249
Unused amounts reversed (39) - {1,075) - (1,114}
Unwinding of discount 1,431 115 146 - 1,692
Utihsed dunng year - (3.085) {1.327) - (4,412)
As at 30 June 2010 14,935 9,170 11,721 966 36,792
Additional provision 54 - - . 54
Unused amounts reversed - (858} (1,001} (450) (2,309)
Unwinding of discount 2,345 45 . - 2,390
Utihsed dunng year - {527) {10,456) (381) {11,364)

As at 30 June 2011 17,334 7,830 264 135 25,563
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16 Provisions for liabilities and charges (continued)

Provisions include £17 3 milion (2010 £14 9 milion} in respect of mast site restoraticn The Group has
certain legal obligations relating to the restoration of leased property to its onginal condition at the end of
the lease term This obligation relates pnncipally to mast sites The provision 1s based on assumptions
covenng the lease tem, the charactenstics of the site, the expected cost of restonng the site and the
pencd of time before the obligation 1s expected to be incurred The provision 1s discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the nsks specific to the iability The provision I1s expected to
be utihsed between 9 and 24 years The undiscounted costs expected to be incurred over this penod are
£81 6 million (2010 £84 0 milhon)

Prowisicns include £7 8 (2010 £9 2 million) million in respect of delayed contractual milestone payments
In the Directors' opinton, it I1s considered that there will not be any significant additional costs beyond the
amounts provided at 30 June 2011 The provision 1s expected to be utiised over the next 6 years The
undiscounted costs expected to be incurred over this penod are £8 6 million (2010 £10 5 million)

Prowvisions include £0 26m (2010 £11 7 million) in respect of restructunng costs  During the year ended
30 June 2010 the Group announced a restructuring program including the closure of two small offices and
a review of its workforce with a target to reduce headcount by 140 Following union and employee
consultation more than 150 positions were made redundant, all voluntanly The provision s expected to be
utilised over the next 3 years

Provisions include £135,000 {2010 £966,000} of costs relating to onerous contracts The provision Is
expected to be utilised within 12 months and has not been discounted

17 Deferred Taxation

Deferred income tax assets and habilites are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset
current tax assets against current tax labilites and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authonty

Deferred tax i1s calculated n full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 26%
{2010 28%)

The net movements in deferred tax balances are as follows

2011

2010

£'000 £000
As at 1 July (208,401) (260,223)
Income statement credit 29,081 51,822
Business combtnation (1,161) -
As at 30 June (180,481) (208,401)
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17 Deferred Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to

deferred tax assets when it 1s probable that these assets will be recovered

Deferred tax assets/ (habilities)

2011

2010

£'000 £000
Depreciation In excess of capital allowances
As at 1 July 18,057 3,943
Credit for the year 4,955 14,114
As at 30 June 23,012 18,057
Provislons and unrealised gain and losses
As at 1 July 74,111 48,275
Charge / credtt for the year (3,134) 25,836
Impact of tax rate change (5,294) -
As at 30 June 65,683 74 111
Deferred tax on intangibles
As at 1 July (300,569) {312,441)
Credit for the year 11,084 11,872
Impact of tax rate change 21,470 -
Business combination (1,161}
As at 30 June (269,176) (300,569)
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 10,228 9,463
Potential tax benefit of unused tax losses 2,659 2,650
2011 2010
£000 £000
Deferred tax assets
- Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months 72,814 75,558
- Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months 15,881 16,610
Total deferred tax assets 88,695 92 168
Deferred tax liabilities
- Deferred tax hability to be recovered after more than 12 months (258,003) (288,697)
- Deferred tax labiity to be recevered waithin 12 months (11,173) (11,872)
Total deferred tax habilities (269,176) (300,569)
Not deferred tax liabllity {180,481) (208.401)

Deferred tax habiities have decreased because the Group has elected not to clam all avalable capital
allowances during the year Deferred tax assets have been recognised to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefit through future capital allowance clams 15 probable Unutiised tax losses may be

carned forward indefinitely
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18 Financial Instruments
Instruments used by the Group

The Group has used denvative financial instruments in order to hedge exposure to fluctuations in interest
rates In accordance with the Group’s financial nsk management policies

Interest rate swap contracts

in Apnil 2007, the Group entered into a 12 year interest rate hedge such that all floating rate payments due
on the £1,500 millon term loan (refer to note 14) were fixed The swap contracts entered into have
structured fixed payments at levels that are static over the Iife of the swap The fixed payments level I1s
5 496% The swap contracts are settled on a six monthly basis

The Group has also entered into a one year basis swap, whereby the 6 month basis on the £1,500 million
debt, has been swapped to a one month basis, the net benefit to the Company was received monthly and
this matured in May 2010 A new one year basis swap was entered into maturing in May 2011

Changes In the carrying value of the denvative financial instruments are iImmediately recogrised in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income These are unreahsed losses which reflect the financial
impact if the Group were to seftie the swaps at the reporting date The Group entered into the swaps in
order to fix the interest rate on the £1,500 million facility as part of its risk management policy and does not
intend to realise this hability

The notional principal amounts and periods of expiry of the Group's interest rate swap contracts are

Matunty 2011 2010

£000 £000
Less than 5 years 1,500,000 1,500,000
5— 16 years 1,500,000 1,500,000

The farr values of the dernvatives held at the balance sheet date, determined by reference to their market
values are as follows

2011 2010

£'000 £000

Interest rate swap fair value asset . 2,186
Interest rate swap faur value hability (Current) (65,870) (66,269)
Interest rate swap far value hability {Non-current) (191,545) (205,362)
Interest rate swap fair value lability (257,415) (271,631}
Interest rate swaps (net) (257,415) (269,445}
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18 Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the Iine items befow

Loans and Asseots at fair value
racelvables through profit or loss Total
At 30 June 2011 £'000 £000 £'000
Assets as per balance sheet
Denvative financial instruments - - -
Investments - - -
Trade and other receivables (excluding 45741 - 45,741
pre-payments)
Cash and cash equivalents 24,503 - 24,503
Total 70,244 - 70,244
Liabllitles at fair
value through the Cther financial
profit and loss llabllitles Totat
£000 £:000 £000
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Borrowings - (1,989,710) (1,989,710)
Denvative financial instruments (257,415) - (257,415)
Trade and other payables {excluding
statutory habihties) and deferred income - (373,543) (373,943)
Total (257,415) (2,363,653) {2,621,068)
Investments
Loans and Assets at far value through held to
receivables the profit and loss matunty Total
AL 30 June 2010 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Assets as per balance sheet
Cenvative financial instruments - 2,186 - 2,186
Investments - - 626 626
Trade and other receivables {(excluding 47,522 - - 47,522
pre-payments)
Cash and cash equivalents 15,658 - 15,658
Total 63,180 2,186 626 65,002
Labliues at fair
value through the
prefit and loss Qther financial habilites Tolal
£'000 £000 £ 000
Llabilsties as per balance sheet
Borrowings - (1,978,933) (1,878,933)
Dernvative financizl instruments (271,631) - (271,631)
Trade and other payables (excluding - (380,236) (380,326}
statutory liabilities) and deferred income
Total (271,631} {2,359,169) (2,630,800}

The fair value of Borrowings 1s £2,030 milhon (2010 £2,062 milion) The fair values are based on forecast
cash flows assuming full repayment in 2014, discounted at prevailing market rates with a credit spread of

2% based on management estimation as at 30 June 2011
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18 Financial Instruments (continued)
Credit quality of financial assets
Credit nisk 1s not considered matenal within the Group as the majonty of contracts are with Pubhc Safety

Organisations An ageing of trade receivables 15 contained in note 5 The credit quality of trade recevables
can also be assessed with reference to the following groups

2011 2010
£'000 £ 000
Countarparties without external credit rating
Group 1— new customers 684 805
Group 2 ~ existing Public Safety Orgarisations customers 35,647 25,965
Group 3 - existing Local Authonty customers 3 113
Group 4 — other existing customers 682 1,511
Total trade receivables 37,016 28,394
Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits
AA 24,503 15,658
24,503 15,658
Derivative financial assets
AA - 2,186
- 2,186
The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s as shown betow
201 2010
£'000 £000
Trade and other recevables (excluding prepayments and receivables 45,741 47 522
from other Group companies}
Cash and cash equivalents 24,503 15,658
70,244 63,180

Financial nsk management
Financial nsk factors

The Group's operations expose it to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk (including foreign exchange
nsk, interest rate nsk and price nsk), credit nsk, liquidity nsk and cash flow interest rate risk The Group’s
overall nsk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group The Group uses denvative
financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps to hedge certain nsk exposures

Financial nsks are 1dentified and managed by the Group's treasury function The role of the treasury
function 1s to identfy, monitor and manage financial nsk within the framework of Board approved policies
and delegated authonties

The principal financial nisks of the Group and how the Group manages these nsks are discussed below
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18 Financial Instruments (continued)

{1) Market Risk

(a}  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates from UK sites and predominantly in the UK market but has some transachons
denominated in currencies other than sterfing The currencies giving nse to this nsk are primanly US
dollars and Euros The majonty of the Group's revenues and costs are stering based and accordingly
exposure to foreign exchange nsk 1s low There 18 a reasonable natural hedge between costs and
revenues

{(b) Interest rate risk

Cash and cash equivalents and the Group’s borrowings are based on a mix of fixed and floating rates A
one per cent change in the base rate would result in an increase/decrease in net assets of £1,884,000
(2010 £1,383,000) This 1s based on floating rate arrangements that affect cash and cash equivalents
and barrowings from other Group companies

fc)  Price risk

The Group has exposure to fluctuations in pnces of electncity, gas and other commodities The potential
impact of this 1s reduced through the negotiation of fixed price contracts

{11) Credit Risk

The Group's principal credit nsks are attnbutable to 1ts cash and cash equivalents and trade recevables
The credit nsk associated with cash and cash equivalents 1s disclosed in note 5

The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s as shown in the table on page 45

{m) Liquidity Risk

Prudent hquidity nsk management imphes maintaining sufficient cash The Group aims to mamntain
appropnate hquidity through the daily monitonng of its actual and projected cash position

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and net-settled denvative financial habilities nto
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining penod at the balance sheet date to the contractual
matunty date The amounts disclosed i the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting 1s not significant, with
the exception of denvative financial instruments whose carrying values are discounted

As the amounts included n the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, these amounts will
not reconcile to the amounts disclosed on the balance sheet for barrowings, dernvative financial
instruments and trade and other payables

Borrowings In the table include pnincipal plus fioating interest rate payments on the HSBC Facility A
based on current market rates
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18 Financial Instruments (continued)

Betwean 1 and 2 Between 2
Less than 1 year years and 5 years Over § Years Total
At 30 June 2011 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Borrowings 46,085 47,968 1,763,764 277,285 2,135,102
Denvative financial instruments 66,257 57,997 106,780 41,731 272,765
Trade payables 14,097 - - . 14,097
Other payables 89,291 - - - 89,291
215,730 105,965 1,870,544 319,016 2,511,255

Between 1 and 2 Between 2 and
Less than 1 year years Syears Qver 5 Years Total
At 30 June 2010 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Borrowings 36,662 47,544 1,834,547 127,285 2,046,038
Denvative financial instruments 65,771 57,834 106,143 60,366 290,114
Trade payables 22,582 - - - 22,582
Other payables 79,545 - - - 79,545
204,560 105,378 1,940,680 187,651 2,438,279

The table below analyses the Group's denvative financial instruments, which will be settled on a gross
basis, into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining peried at the balance sheet date to the

confractual maturity date

Between 1 and Between 2 and

Less than 1 year 2 years § years Qver 5 Years Total

At 30 June 2011 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Interest Rate Swaps

Qutflows (98,741) {82,440) {247,545) (238,738) {667,464}

Inflow 32,484 24,443 140,765 197,007 394,699

(66,257) (57,997) {106,780) (41,721) {272,765}

Between 1 and 2 Between 2 and

Less than 1 year years Syears QOver 5 Years Total

At 30 June 2010 £000 £7000 £°000 £ 000 £'000
Interest Rate Swaps

Qutflows (97,842) (82,666) {246,868) (321.,855) (749,331)

Inflow 32,171 24,832 140,725 261,489 459,217

(65.771) (57.834) {106,143) (60,366) (290,114)

Note The specific time perniods presented are based on how management moniters iquidity nsks

{rv) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's significant interest-beanng assets include cash and cash equwalents and interest beanng
loans and borrowings See note 5 for details of cash and cash eguivalents See note 14 for details of

interest rates and matunty attaching to the interest beanng borrowings and loans
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18 Financial Instruments (continued)
(v) Cash flow interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's interest-rate nsk anses from long-term borrowings The Group has long-term borrowings
issued at floating interest rates For floating rate exposures, the Group partally hedges the exposure by
entering nto interest rate swaps, whereby the Group agrees with its counterparties to exchange at
specified intervals the difference between the fixed contract rates and floating rate amounts calculated
by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts

{v)  Caprtal nsk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concem In order to provide returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt or
drawdown additional debt

The Group’s Capital Management Policy 1s to ensure the avalabiity of an adequate supply of
reasonably priced funding (and other credit Ines) to meet current requirements as well as future growth
anticipated under the Group’s budget and strategic plan, within the constraints of debt capacity {as
determined by long-term geanng targets, operational covenants, and financial covenant requirements)

The Group 1s funded through a mix of equity and debt, to match the maturity profile of its assets and
habilities The funding profile was determmed during the shareholder acquisition process to reflect the
dynamics of the orgamisation and its future strategy

The Treasury function centrally manages all funding activity for the Group and determines the optmum
source of funding for each funding requirement, with the appropnate matunty, whilst ensurng maxmum
flexability in the covenants prowvided

{vi} Fair value estimation

The far value of the trade and other recevables, trade and other payables, short-term deposits, money
market funds, cash at bank and short-term borrowings approximates to the carrying value due to the
short-term or on-demand matunty of these instruments

The fair value of financial habilites for disclosure purposes s estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the prevailing market interest rate avallable to the Group for similar financial
nstruments

The farr value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter dernvatives) i1s determined by using valuation techniques The Group uses a vanety of methods
and makes assumptions that are based on market condittons existing at each balance sheet date
Discounted future estimated cash flows using prevaiing market interest rates are used for long-term
debt Other techmques, such as estimated discounted cash fiows, are used to detenmine fair value for
the remamning financial instruments The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash fiows

47



Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consoclidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Consoldated Financial Statements (continued)

19 Ordinary Shares

Authonsed

2014 2010
£ £
5,000,000 Ordinary Shares of £001 each 50,000 50,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
2011 2010
£ £
153,100 Ordinary Share of £0 01 each 1,53 1,531

The Company has one class of authonsed and 1ssued share capital, compnsing ordinary shares of £0 01 each
Subject to the Company's Articles of Association and applicable law, the Company's ordinary shares confer on
the holder the nght to receve notice of and vote at general meetings of the Company, the nght to receive any
surplus assets on a winding-up of the Group, and an entitiement to receive any dvidend declared on ordinary
shares

20 Related Party Disclosures

The Group's parent and ultimate parent companies are disclosed in note 27

Kelvin Connect Limited was an associate (37% holding} of the Company untl 2 February 2011 when the
company acquired the remaining 63% of the issued share capital of Kelvin Connect Limited making it a 100%

subsidiary as disclosed in note 10

All transactions with related parties are conducted under normal trading terms No guarantees are given or
received on the above transactions No provisions have been made for the above amounts, nor are any of the

above related party transactions recognised or considered as bad or doubtful debt

The following transactions were carned out with related parties

a) Purchases of goods and services

2011 2010
£'000 £ 000

Operating expenditure
- Associates 634 440
- Entities under common contro! - -

Capital expenditure

- Entities under common contro! - 10
634 450
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20 Related Party Disclosures (continued)

b) Year-end balances ansing from purchases of goods and services

2011 2010
£000 £ 000
Receivables and Prepayments
- Entibes under common contro! - -
Payables
- Entibes under common control - -
¢} Loans and other recevables and payables
2011 2010
£'000 £000
Intercompany Loans
- GDCLux Opening balance (158,926) (158,926)
Loan repayments during the year - -
Interest charged {18,000} (18,000)
Interest repaid 17,426 18,000
Closing balance {159,500) {158,926)
- GDCLux Opening balance (127,285) {145,600)
Loan repayments dunng the year - 18,315
Closing balance (127,285) {127,285)
2011 2010
£'000 £000
Interest Rate Swaps
- Entiies wath joint control or significant influence  Interest rate swap 13,511 13,697
settlements received
Interest rate swap {48,556} (50,529)
settlements Paid
Unrealised interest rate (117,653) (134,722)
swap hability

Related party transactions with Directors and key management are detalled in note 22

Following the acquisition of Airwave, the Company entered into an agreement to guarantee any financial claim
made by the Natonal Policing Improvement Agency, the Secretary of State for Health, the Scottish Ambulance
Board or the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government, to the extent that such a clam had not
been satisfied by the Company within a prescribed penod In the event that the claim 1s not satisfied in full by the
Company within a further prescribed penod, MEIFII and FIIL have agreed to indemnify the Customers in respect
of any claim, subject to a cap on hability
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21 Pension Scheme

The Airwave Plan i1s a defined contribution arrangement and employer contnbutions are recogrised as a benefit
expense when they are due The amounts charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for
defined contnbution pension arrangements are set out below

2011 2010
£'000 £'000

Defined contnbution — Airwave Plan 3,122 3649
3,122 3,649

The Group’s contributions to the Airwave Plan consists of payments made under a company pohcy to match
employee contributions mto the pension plan In June 2009 the Group commenced a salary sacnfice pension
scheme to provide additional benefits for employees in retirement Contributions under the salary sacnfice
pension scheme are included above

The amount payable at 30 June 2011, included within Trade and Other Payables on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, was £463,800 (2010 £nil)

22 Key Management and Director Compensation

The compensation of key management for the year ended 30 June 2011 was, as follows

2011 2010

£'000 £000
Salanes and short-term employee benefits 3,672 2,767
Post-employment benefits 178 177
Total key management compensation 3,850 2,944

The key management compensation analysed above represents compensaton eamed by the Group’s
Management Board including one {2010 two) Director of the Group The emoluments of the Directors who were
remunerated for ther services to the Group, for the year ended 30 June 2011 were as follows

2041 2010

£'000 £000

Aggregate emoluments in respect of qualifying services 40 52
Total director emoluments 40 52

The emoluments of the Directors representing MEIFIl and CPPIB are paid by entities related to the ulimate joint
parent companies No recharge 1s made to the ulhmate joint parent company Accordingly, the above details
include no emcluments in respect of these Directors

In respect of the highest paid Director

2011 2010

£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments in respect of qualifying services 40 40
Total highest paid Director emoluments 40 40

The tughest paid Director did not participate in a pension scheme in respect of their qualifying services during
the year
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23 Employees

201 2010
Average monthly number of full time employee equivalents (including
executive Directors)
UK & International Services 181 213
Network operations and administration 649 653
Total employees 830 866
The benefits expense mcurred In respect of these employees were
Note 2011 2010
£'000 £000
Wages and salanes 43,394 46,241
Social secunty costs 3,637 4,325
Pension costs 21 3,122 3,649
Total employee benefits expanse 50,153 54,215

24 Financial Commitments

Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000

Within one year 28,974 28,223
Later than one year but not later than five years 89,455 89,671
Later than five years 77,263 78,519
195,692 196,413

The Group leases various offices, vehicles and mast sites under non-cancellable operating lease agreements
These leases have varnous terms and renewal nghts The Group recognised lease payments of £34,276,000 in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ended 30 June 2011 (2010 £34,728,000)

Other commitments

2014 2010
£'000 £ 000

Contracts placed for capital expenditure not prowvided for in the financial statements
— property, plant and equipment 12,699 13,121
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25 Dividends per share

The dividends paid in 2011 and 2010 were £4 1 milhon (£26 81 per share) and £36 9 mufhon (£241 25 per share)
respectively The Directors recommend a payment of a dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2011 of
£86 22 per share, amounting to a total dvidend of £13 2m (2010 £26 61 per share, totalling £4 1 million) These
financial statements do not reflect this dwvidend payable

26 Contingent Liabilities
The Group has ne contingent liabilibes or guarantees on which matenal losses are expected

The Group does not believe there are any pending legal proceedings which would have a matenal adverse effect
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group

27 Parent Company and Controlling Party

The Company's mmediate parent company 1s Guardian Digital Communications Luxembourg S ar|
{GDCLUX™Y As at 30 June 2008 GDCLux was owned 50 001% by the Macquane European Infrastructure Fund I}
("MEIFII"), an unlisted fund domiciled 1n Luxembourg, and 49 899% by the Canadian Pension Plan Investiment
Board (“CPPIB") Duning the year, MEIFIl agreed to acquire CPPIB's holding in GDCLux The transaction 1
dependent upon UK Government approval and 1s yet to be completed

GDCLux, ts the ultimate parent undertaking and controling party of the largest and smallest group of
undertakings to consclidate these financial statements at 30 June 2011 The consclidated financial statements of
GDClux are avalable at its registered office of 48, Place Guillaume I, L — 1648 Luxembourg

28 Events Occurring after Balance Sheet Date

In addition to the changes in rates of Corporaticn tax disclosed (note 4) a number of further changes to the UK
Corporation tax system were announced in the March 2011 UK Budget Statement Legislation to reduce the main
rate of corporation tax from 26% to 25% from 1 Apnl 2012 15 expected to be included mn the Finance Act 2011
Further reductions to the main rate are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 23% by 1 Apnl 2014
These further changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not
included in these financial statements

The effect of the changes expected to be enacted in the Finance Act 2011 would be to decrease the net deferred
tax asset provided at the balance sheet date by £2 9m

The proposed reductions of the main rate of corporation tax by 1% per year to 23% by 1 Apnil 2014 are expected
to be enacted separately each year The overall effect of the further changes from 25% to 23%, if these apphed
to the net deferred asset balance at the balance sheet date, would be to further reduce this by £9 Sm

The effect of the changes expected to be enacted in the Finance Act 2011 would be to decrease the net deferred
tax hability provided at the balance sheet date by £5 8m

The proposed reductions of the main rate of corporation tax by 1% per year to 23% by 1 April 2014 are expected
to be enacted separately each year The overall effect of the further changes from 25% to 23%, If these applied
to the net deferred hability balance at the balance sheet date, would be to further reduce this by £47 4m

No other significant events have occurred after the balance sheet date
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Digital Communications Holdings Limited on the Parent
Company Financial Statements

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited
for the year ended 30 June 2011 which compnse the Parent Company Balance Sheet, the Parent Company
Statement of Cash Flows, the Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes The
financial reporting framework that has been applled in their preparation 1s applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fuily in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 9 the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Qur
responsibiity 15 to audit and express an opimon on the financial statements 1n accordance wth applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, in gnaing
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any cther person to whom this report
1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures m the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal nusstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent
company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Director’s report and knancial statements
to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements H we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the parent company financial statements

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2011 and of its profit cash flows
for the year then ended,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

+  have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinien on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the parent company
financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparues Act 2006 requires us to report

to you if, in our opimon

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeqguate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

« the parent company financial statemenis are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

+ certain disciosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Consolidated financial statements of Guardian Digital Communications
Holdings Limited for the year ended 30 June 2011

J Qostaan

J Booker (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalt of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, 13 October 2011
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Parent Company Balance Sheet

Note 2011 2010
£000 £'000

Non-current assots
Investments 32 - -
Trade and other receivables 34 279,885 279,885
Total non-current assets 279,685 279,685
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 34 42,385 17,897
Cash and cash equivalents 33 562 562
Total current assots 42,947 18,459
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 35 (8,727) (5,001}
Total current habilities {8,727) {5,001)
Net current assets 34,220 13,458
Total assets less current Habilities 313,908 293,143
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 36 (127,285) (127,285)
Total non-current liabilities {127,285) {127,285)
Net assets 186,620 165,858
Equity
Capiltal and reservas attributable to owners of the parent of the
Company
Ordinary shares 38 2 2
Share premium 38 152,998 152,998
Retained earmings 33,620 12,858
Total equity 186,620 165,858

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying riotes on pages 57 to 66

The financial statements on pages 54 to 66 were authonsed by the Board of Directors on 11 October 2011 and
were signed on its behalf

N

PeterDyer -~
Director
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Ordinary Share Retalned

Ordinary Shares Premium Earnings Total

£'000 £'600 £:000 £'000

Balance at 30 June 2009 2 162,998 23,571 176,571

Profit for the year and total comprehensive _ - 26,222 26,222
ncome

Dividends - - (36,935) (36,935)

Batance at 30 June 2010 2 152,998 12,858 165,858

Profit for the year and total comprehensive . - 24,836 24,836
Income

Dividends - - {4,074) (4,074)

Balance at 30 June 2011 2 152,998 33,620 186,620

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction wath the accompanying notes on pages 57 to 66
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Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read tn conjunction wath the accompanying notes on pages 57 to 66

2011

2010

Note £'000 £'000
Cash generated from operating activities

Profit from operations 30 24,836 26,222
Net finance costs (33,564) (36,465)
Decrease In trade and other payables - (222)
Increase 1n tax llabihty 3,726 -
Net cash used in operating activities (5,002} {10,4865)
Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received from third parties 1 1
Interest received from subsidiary undertakings 39 9,075 37,224
Loan repayments from subsidiary undertakings 39 - 28,447
Net cash from investing activities 9,076 65,672
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of related party loans 39 - (18,315)
Dividends pad {4,074) (36,935)
Net cash used in financing activities {4,074} {55,250)
Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents - (43)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 33 562 805
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 33 562 562
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Notes to the Financial Statements

29 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are stated to
assist In a general understanding of these financial statements

(@

{b)

(c)

(d)

General information

The principal activities of Guardian Digital Commurications Holdings Limited ('the Company’) is to invest
in subsicharies which develop and provide mobile Information and Communication Technology ('ICT") to
Public Safety Organisations in Great Britain

The Company 15 a private limited company domiciled and registered in England and Wales The
registered address 1s Charter Court, 50 Windsor Road, Slough, Berkshire SL1 2EJ

The registered number of the Company 15 8143511
Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), and IFRIC (International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee) interpretations applicable to Companies reporting under
IFRS The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
financial assets and financial habiites {(including derivative instruments) at farr value through profit or
loss As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act of 2008, the Company's Statement of
Comprehensive Income has not been included in these financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain cntical
accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise 1ts judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting pelicies

The principal accounting policies adopted In the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated

A statement on going concem 15 Included in the Directors’ Report The Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operatonal existence for the
foreseeable future and therefore can continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial
statements

The Company has a strong cpening cash position with access to further committed bank facilites
Therefore these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis

Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are recorded at cost, which 1s the farr value of the consideration
paid

Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assels were acquired Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition

Loans and recetvables

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted In an achive market They are included in current assets, except for matunties greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date These are classified as non-current assets The Company’s loans
and recevables compnse receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet
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29
(d)

{e)

)

(9

(h)

M

0

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

If the market for a financial asset I1s not active {and for unlisted secunities), the Company establishes farr
value by using valuaton techmques These include the use of recent anm’s length transactons,
reference to other instruments that are substantally the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and
conventional option pncing models making maximum use of observable market inputs and relying as
Iittle as possible on entity-speaific inputs

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective ewidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised mitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorbsed cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment A provision for imparment of trade
receivables 1s established when there is objective evidence that the Company wili not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the recevables Significant financial difficulbes of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency i payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade
receivable 1s impaired The amount of the provision 15 the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estmated future cash flows, discounted at the onginal effective interest
rate The carrying amount of the asset I1s reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within cost of goods sold
When a trade receivable 1s uncollectible, it 1s wntten off against the allowance account for trade
receivables Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously written off are credited against cost of goods
sold in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Cash Flows includes cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks and bank overdrafts

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are wntten off as incurred unless capitalised as part of qualifying assets

Borrowings

Subsequent to imtial recogrition at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, interest beanng labilities
are measured at amortised cost and classified as financial habilities Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount s recognised In the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method
Transaction costs are included in the carrying amount and are charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deducton, net of tax, from the proceeds

Revenue recognition

Interest ncome I1s recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method
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29 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

o

(m}

Accounting Standards and interpretations

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that
are mandatory for accounting pericds begintung on or after 1 July 2011 or later penods but which the
Company has chosen not to early adopt The new standards and interpretations, applicable to the
Company, which will be adopted by the Company as appropnate are as follows

IFRS 9, 'Financial instruments’, 1ssued in December 2009 This addresses the classification and
measurement of financial assets and 1s likely to affect the Group’s accounting for its financial assets

The standard 1s not applicable until 1 January 2015 but 1s available for early adoption The Group is yet
to assess IFRS 9's full impact

The Company has not elected to early adopt these amendments The Company i1s currently assessing
the impact of these amendments and does not expect at this stage that they would significantly impact
the Company's financial position

Foreign currencies

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities are reported as part of the far
value gain or loss 1n finance cost or income held at fair value through profit and loss are reported as part
of the fair value gain and loss

() Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional currency’) The financial statements are
presented in Pounds Sterling (GBP), which 1s the Company's functional and presentation currency

{n)Transactions and balances

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated, at the exchange rate on the day the
transaction occurred, to the funchonal currency of the entity Monetary assets and liabilhes denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date Foreign exchange
differences ansing on translation are recogrused in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Non-
monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the foreign currency
exchange rate prevailing at the dates the values were determined

Taxation

The current income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred income tax i1s provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences ansing
between the tax bases of assets and labiities and thew carrying amounts 1n the Financial Statements
However, the deferred income tax i1s not accounted for if it anses from initial recognition of an asset or
hability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred income tax 1s determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset s realised or the deferred income tax hability 1s
settled
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29 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Taxation (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recogrised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utiised

Deferred income tax 1s prowided on temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes, except
where the tming of the reversal of the temporary difference 1s controlled by the Company and it 1s

probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Income tax relating to tems recognised directly In equity 1s recegrused in equity, not in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

{n}) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders 1s recognised as a hability in the group’s financial
statement in the penod in which the dividends are approved by the company’s shareholders

30 Statement of Comprehensive Income

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act of 2006, the Company's Statement of Comprehensive Income
has not been included In these financial statements The Company’s profit for the year was £24,836,000 (2010

£26,222,000)

31 Employees and Directors’ Emoluments

The Company had no employees dunng the year ended 30 June 2011 (2010 nil} No director received
emoluments in respect of services provided to the Company during the year {2010 nil)

32 Investmentin Subsidiaries

Investment in subsidianes
Guardian Digital Communications Limited

At 30 June 2011
At 30 June 2010

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are holdings of 100% of the ordinary shares of UK registered companies
Details of the companies are as follows

Statement of
Comprehensive
Income for the

Staternent of
Comprehensive
Income for the

Total Equity at year ended 30 Total Equity at year ended 30
Country of 30 June 2011 June 2011 30 June 2010 June 2010
Name of Company Registration  Nature of Business £000 £000 £000 £000
i
Guardian Digital
England Intermediate holding
Communications and Wales | company {643,558) {113,432} (530,126) (183,111)

Limited

Companies tn which the Company holds indirect holdings are disclosed in note 10 of the consolidated financial

statements
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33 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2011 2010
£'000 £ 000

Cash at bank 562 562
562 562

(a) Cash at bank

Cash at bank represents cash not placed on overnight deposit and 1s non interest bearng

Credit nsk

Cash and cash equivalents credit nsk 15 monitored on an overall basis by the treasury function through the
apphication of counter party credit imits which are dependent on the long term credit rating of the counterparty
The credit imits of major counterparties are as follows

Long 2011 2010
term Counterparty
rating Limit No of No of
£'000 Balance £'000 Counterparties  Balance £'000 Counterparhes

AAA 75 000 i ’

AA 50,000 562 1 562 1

A 25,000 i )
BBB 10,000 i ’

562 562
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34 Trade and Other Receivables

2011 2010

£'000 £ 006

Amounts owed by group undertakings (non-cument) 279,685 279,685
Amounts owed by group undertakings {current} 42,385 17,897
322,070 297,582

Amounts owed by group undertakings compnse an intercompany loan to Guardian Digital Communications
Limited which 1s repayable on demand at any time or as otherwise agreed, provided repayment does not make
the borrower insolvent The Company has classified the loan as non-current as the lean will not be recalled Iin the

next 12 months

Credit nsk 15 not considered matenal within the Company as the majonty of the balances are with other group

undertakings

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of receivables
mentoned above The Company does not hold any collateral as secunty Credit nsk 1s not considered matenal
within the company as the majonty of its balances relate to group undertakings None of the trade and other
receivables are past due and not mpaired Trade and other recervables are all denominated in Pounds Sterling

(GBP)

35 Trade and Other Payables

2011

2010

£'000 £000
Current
Amounts payable to group undertakings 8,727 5,001
B, 727 5,001
The carrying value of frade and other payables approximates to its far value
36 Borrowings
1 | 2011 | 2010
b Note | £'000 £ 000
Non-Current unsecured borrowings
Loan — GDCLux 127,285 127,285
Total Interest bearing loans and borrowings 127,285 127,285

The Caompany’s bormowings are denominated in Pounds Sterfing (GBP})
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37 Financial Instruments
Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been apphed to the ine items below

Assets at far value

Loans and receivabl gh profit or loss Total
At 30 June 2011 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets as per balance sheet
Trade and other receivables 322,070 - 322,070
Cash and cash equivalents 562 - 562
Total 322,632 - 322,632
Other financial
Liabllltles at fair value llabilities at amortised
through profit or loss cost Total
£'000 £'000 £000
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Borrowings - (127,285) (127,285)
Trade and other payables - {8,726) (8,726)
Total - {136,011) (136,011)
Assets at far value
Loans and recewables through profit or loss Total
At30 June 2010 £000 £'000 £000
Assets as per balance sheet
Trade and other recervables 297,582 - 297,582
Cash and cash equivalents 562 - 562
Total 298,144 - 298,144
Liabilites at tair value
through prefit or loss Other financial habiibes Total
£000 £000 £'000
Liabilities as per balance sheet
Borrowings - (127,285) (127,285)
Trade and other payables - (5,001) (5.001)
Total - (132,286} (132,286)

The farr value of Trade and Other Receivables 1s £376,857 milion (2010 £367,320 rmillion} The farr value of
Borrowings 1s £114,398 mdkon (2010 £108,624 million) The farr values are based on forecast cash flows
assurming full repayment in 2014, discounted at prevailing market rates with a credit spread of 2% based on
management estimation as at 30 June 2011
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37 Financial Instruments (continued)
Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets can also be assessed with reference to the following groups

Group trade receivables 2011 2010
£'000 £ 000

Loans to subsidiary undertakings
Guardian Digital Communications Limited 322,070 297,582

Cash at bank and short-term bank deposits
AA 562 562

The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s as shown below

2011 2010
£'000 £'000

Trade and other receivables 322,070 207,582
Cash and cash equivalents 562 562
322,632 208,144

Financial nsk management policies for the Group and the Company are disclosed in note 18

38 Ordinary Shares

Authornised
2011 2010
£ £
5,000,000 Ordinary Shares of £0 01 each 50,000 50,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
2011 2010
£ £
153,100 Ordinary Share of £0 01 each 1,531 1,531

The Company has one class of authonsed and i1ssued share capital, comprising ordinary shares of £0 01 each
Subject to the Company’s Articles of Associabon and applicable law, the Company’s ordinary shares confer on
the holder the nght to receive notice of and vote at general meetings of the Company, the nght to receive any
surplus assets on a winding-up of the Company, and an entitlement to receive any dividend declared on ordinary
shares

The 1ssue of share capital in 2007 resulted in a share premum of £152,998 469

64



Guardian Digital Communications Holdings Limited

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 30 June 2011

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

39 Related Party Disclosures

The Company’s parent and ultmate parent companies are disclosed in note 41

The Company's mmediate parent company 1s Guardian Digital Commumicatons Luxembourg Sa rl
(“GDCLux™}, incorperated in Luxembourg

Guardian Digital Communications Limited ("GDCL®) s a subswidiary underiaking registered i the UK
Transactions with GDCL are disclosed below Airwave Solutions Limited (*Airwave™) 1s a wholly owned subsidiary
of GDCL registered in the UK There were no transacticns with Airwave in the year

All transactions with refated parties are conducted under normal trading terms No guarantees are given or

received on the above transachions No provisions have been made for the above amounts, nor are any of the
above related party transactions recognised or considered as bad or doubtful debt

The following transactions were carned out with related parties

Loans and other receivables and payables

2011 2010
£'000 £000

Intercompany Loans
- GOCLux Opening balance {127,285} {145,600)
Loan repayments dunng the year - 18,315
Closing balance {127,285} {127,285}
- GDCL Opening balance 297,582 326,789
Loan repayments dunng the year - (28,447)
Interest charged 33,563 36,454
Interest repaid (9,075) (37,224)
Closing balance 322,070 297,582

Other Payables

- GDCL Opening Balance {5,001} (5.223)
Consideration for tax losses {8,727} (10,198}
Repayments 5,001 10,420
Closing Balance {8,727) (5.001)

Following the acquisition of Guardian Digital Communications Limited and Airwave Sclutions Limited {“Airwave")
the Company entered inte an agreement to guarantee any financial claim made by the National Policing
Improvement Agency, the Secretary of State for Health, the Scottish Ambulance Board or the Secretary of State
for Communities and Local Government, to the extent that such a clam had not been satisfied by Airwave within
a prescnbed penod In the event that the claim 1s not satisfied in full by the Company within a further prescnbed
pertod, MEIFII and FIIL have agreed to indemnify the Customers in respect of any clam, subject to a cap on
hability
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40 Contingent Liabilities
The Company has no contingent habilities or guarantees on which material losses are expected

The Company does not beheve there are any pending legal proceedings which would have a matena! adverse
effect on the financial position or results of operations of the Company

41 Parent Company and Controlling Party

The Company's immediate parent company 1s Guardian Digital Communications Luxembourg S & r 1 (GDCLux),
which 1s the ultmate controlling party and ultmate parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group to
consolidate these financial statements and s registered in Luxembourg Copiles of the GDCLux consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2011 are avallable from its registered office at 45, Place
Guillaume Ii, L — 1648 Luxembourg

As at 30 June 2009 GDCLux was owned 50 001% by the Macquane European Infrastructure Fund Il (*"MEIFII™),
an unlisted fund domiciled in Luxembourg, and 49 999% by the Canadian Pension Plan Investment Board

(“CPPIB") During the year, MEIFI) agreed to acquire CPPIB's holding in GDCLux The transaction 1s dependent
upon UK Government approval and is yet to be completed

42 Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date

No sigruficant events have occurred after the balance sheet date
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